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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Daman Hospitality Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have sudited the accompanying financial statements of Daman Hospitality Private Limited
(‘the Company'), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022, the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flow and the Statement of Changes in
Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
infarmation.

in aur opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesald
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformily with the Indian Accounting Standards ('Ind AS') specified
under section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indlan Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2022,
and Its loss (including other comprehensive income), ils cash flows and the changes in equity for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the
Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are Independent of the Company in accordance
with the Code of Ethics Issued by the Institule of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI") together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provislons of the Act
and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requiraments and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate lo provide a basis for our opinion.
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Daman Hospitality Private Limited
Independent Auditor's Repart on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Emphasis of Matter — Covid 19 Impact

We draw attention to Note 42 to the accompanying financial statements, with respect to COVID-19 pandemic
oulbreak and management's evaluation of its impact on the operafions of the Company and on the
accompanylng financial statements. Our opinion is not modified In respect of this mattar.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. Other Information does not
include {he financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the olther information
and, In doing so, consider whether the other information is materially incansistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated,

The Directer's Report is not made available to us at the date of this auditor's report. We have nothing to
raport in this regard.
Responsibliities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The accompanying financlal statements have been approved by the Company's Board of Direclors. The
Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Acl with respect
to the preparation and presentation of these financial staterents that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance Including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company, in accordance with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
racords in accordance with the pravisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriale accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
complateness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to golng concern and using
the going concern basls of accounting, unless the Board of Directors elther intend to liquidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Thosze Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financlal Statements

Our objectives ara to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issua an auditor's report thal includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but Is not a guarantee that an audit
conductad in accordance with Standards on Audiling will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.
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Daman Hospitality Private Limited
Independent Auditor's Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

10. As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of the Act, we
exercise professlonal Judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of malerial misstalement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriale lo provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulling from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, fargery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal contral;

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate In the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(l) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls;

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
astimates and related disclosures made by management;

Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doublt on the Company's abilily to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncerlainly exists, we are required to draw attentlon In our auditor's report
to the related disclosures In the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our apinien. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up o the data of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern,

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation;

11. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audil findings, including any significant deficiencies in Internal control
thal we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

12. Based on our audil, we report that the Company has not paid or provided for any managerial remuneration
during the year. Accordingly, reporting under section 197(16) of the Act is not applicable.

13, As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ('the Order’) issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the Annexure A, a statement on tha matters specified
in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

14, Furlher to our comments in Annexure A, as required by section 143(3) of the Act based on our audit, we
report, to the extent applicable, that!

a)

b)

We have sought and abtained all the Information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the accompanying financial statements;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books;
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Daman Hospitality Private Limited
Independent Auditor's Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

¢) The financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

d) In our opinion, the aforesald financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under section 133 of the
Act;

@) Onthe basis of the writlen representations received from the directors and taken on record by the Board
of Diractors, none of the direclors are disqualified as on 31 March 2022 from belng appointed as a
director In terms of section 164(2) of the Act, except Mr. Pragnesh Shah, who was disqualified as on
31 March 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of seclion 164(2) of the Act.

f)  With respect to the adeduaay of the internal financlal controls with reference to financial statements of
the Company as on 31 March 2022 and the operating effectiveness of such centrols, refer to our
separate Report in Annexure B, wherein, we have expressed an unmadified opinion; and

g) With respsct to the olher malters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amendad), in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i,  The Company, as detailed in note 28 (i) to the financial stalements, has disclosed the impact of
pending litigations on its financial position as at 31 March 2022;

ii.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any materlal foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2022;

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Pratection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2022,

iv. a. The managemant has represented that, lo the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed
in note 43(vi) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or securities premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Company to or in any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘the
intermediaries’), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (the Ultimate
Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf the Ullimate
Beneficiarles;

b. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed
in note 43(vii) to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company
from any person(s) or entity(les), including foreign entities (‘the Funding Parties’), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persans or entities Identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (‘Ultimate Beneficlaries') or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ullimate Beneficiaries; and
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Daman Hospltality Private Limited
Independent Auditor's Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

c. Based on such audit procedures performed as considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
management representations under sub-clauses (a) and (b) above contain any material
misstatement.

v. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended 31 March 2022,

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Reglstration No:001076N/N500013

Khushroo B. Panthaky
Partnar
Membership No:042423

UDIN:22042423AGVDBL6534

Flace: Mumbai
Date: 11 April 2022
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Daman Hospitality Private Limited
Independent Auditor's Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 13 of the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the
members of Daman Hospitality Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2022

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and
belief, we report that:

(i)

(i

(i)

(iv)

v)

(a) (A) The Company has maintained properrecords showing full particulars, Including
guantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intanglble assets.

(b) The property, plant and equipment have been physically verified by the managemant during
the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion, the
frequency of physical verification program adopled by the Company, is reasonable having
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

(¢) The litle deeds of all the immovable properties held by the Company are held in the name of
the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Properly, Plant and Equipment or intangible assets during
the year.

(e)No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules
made thereundar, Accordingly, reporling under clausa 3(i){e) of the Order is not applicable ta
the Company.

(a) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals
during the year. In our opinion, the caverage and procedures of such verification by the
management is appropriate and no discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each
class of inventory were noticed.

{b) The Company has not been sanclionad working capital limits by banks or financial Institutions on
the basis of security of current assets during any point of time of the year. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order Is not applicable {o the Company.

The Company has not made any investment In, provided any guarantee or security or granted
any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms,
Limited Liabllity Partnerships (LLPs) or any other partles durlng the year. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(iil) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not entered into any transaction covered under seclion 185 and 186 of the Act.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not accepted any deposits or there is no amount which has been considered as deemed
deposit within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance
of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.
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Daman Hospitality Private Limited
Independent Auditor’s Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Annexure A (Contd)

{vi} The Central Gavernment has not specified maintanance of cost records under sub-section
(1) of section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company's products/business activity. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

(vii)(a) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given fo us, undisputed
statutory dues, including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees' state
insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duly of customs, duly of excise, value added
tax, cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable, have generally been regularly
deposited with the appropriate authorities by the Company, though there have been slight
delays in a few cases. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in respect thereof were
outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues
referred in sub-clause (a) which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on
account of any dispute except for the following:

Name of | Nature Gross Amount paid Period to Forum whera
the of dues | Amount under Protest (¥) | which the dispute is
statute (£4] amount pending

relates
Income Income Rs. 11.75 Nil AY 2013-2014 | Assistant
Tax Act, Tax Lakhs Commissioner of
1961 Income Tax —

Ahmedabad

(viii)y  According to the information and explanations given to us, no transactions were surrendered
or disclosed as income during the year In the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act,
1961 (43 of 1961), which have not been recorded in the books of accounts,

(ix) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any
loans or other borrowings from any lender. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

{b) According to the information and explanations given to us, including confirmations received
from other lenders and representation raceived from the management of the Company, and
on the basis of our audil procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared a
willful defaulter by any lender.

{c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not raised any money by way of term loans during the year and did nol have any term
loans outstanding at the beginning of the current year. Accordingly, reporting under clause
3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable lo the Company.

(d) In our opinion and according ta the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
raised any funds on short term basis during the year or In any previous year. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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Daman Hospitality Private Limited
Independent Auditor's Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Annexur Contd

(2) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(e) and clause
3(Ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

() () The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments), during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(2) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment ar private placement of shares or (fully, partially or optionally) convertible
debentures during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(x) (8) To the best of our knowledge and according ta the information and explanations given to us, no
fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noliced or reported during the period covered
by our audit.

(b) No report under section 143(12) of the Acl has been filed with the Central Government for the perlod
covered by our audit.

{c) According to the information and explanations given la us, including the representation made to us
by the management of the Company, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the
Company during the year.

(xil) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{xiil) 1n our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions entered
into by the Company, with the related partias are in compliance with section 188 of the Act. The details
of such related parly transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements etc., as required
under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures specified in Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 as prescribed under section 133 of the Act. Further,
according to the Information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to constitute
an audit committee under section 177 of the Act.

{(xiv) According to the Information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to have an
internal audit system under section 138 of the Act and consequently, does not have an internal audit
system. Accordingly, reporling under clause 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xv) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entared into any non-
cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with them and accordingly, provisions of
section _'I 92 of the Act are not applicable o the Company.

(xvi) The Company Is not required to be registered under seclion 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934. Accordingly, reporiing under clauses 3({xvi)(a),(b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable to the

Company.
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Daman Hospitality Private Limited
Independent Auditor's Report on tha Audit of the Financial Statements

Annexure A (Cantd)

{(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year but had incurred cash losses

amounting to Rs.602.07 lakhs in the immediately preceding financial year.

(xviil) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, reporting under

(i)

(xx)

(xxi)

clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According o the Information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financlal assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
infermation accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the plans of the Board of
Direclors and management and based on our examination of the avidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our altention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainly exists as on lhe date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year
from the balance sheet date. We, howaver, state that this is nol an assurance as to the future viability
of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when
they fall due.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not fulfill the criteria
as specified under seclion 135(1) of the Act read with the Gompanies (Corporale Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and according, reporling under clause 3(xx) of the Order Is not
applicable to the Company.

The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is nol applicable in respect of audit of financial
statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of said clause
under thls report.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm

's Registration No:001076N/NS00013

T

Khushroo B. Par;thaky
Pariner
Membership No:042423

UDIN:22042423AGVDBLE534

Place: Mumbal
Date: 11 April 2022
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Daman Hospitality Private Limited
Independent Auditor's Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Annexure B of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Daman Hospitality
Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

Independent Auditor's Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 1432 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act')

In conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of Daman Hospitality Private Limited
('the Company') as at and for the year ended 31 March 2022, we have audited the internal financial controls
with rafarence to financial statements of the Company as at that date.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the Internal financlial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of Internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financlal Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
These responsibililies include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficlent conduct of the Company's
business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting recards, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial
Statements

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's Internal financial contrals with reference to
financlal statements based on our audil. We conducted our audit In accordance with the Standards on
Auditing issued by the Instilute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI') prescribed under Section 143(10)
of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial
staternents, and the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (‘the
Guidance Note') issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial stalements were established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respacts.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements includes obtaining an understanding of such Internal
financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
stalements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtalned is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit apinion on the Company's intemal financlal controls with reference to financial stalements.
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Daman Hospitality Private Limited
Indepandent Auditor's Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Annexure B (Contd)

Meaning of Internal Financial Gontrols with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's Internal financial controls with reference to financial stalements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes In accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, A company's
intarnal financial controls with reference to financial statements Include {hose policies and proceduras that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detall, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
fransactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial slatements In accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that recelpts and expendiiures of the company are being made
only In accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company, and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Baecause of the Inherent limitations of Internal financial contrals with reference to financlal statements,
Including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial contrals with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial contrals with refarence ta financial statements may become inadequate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deterlorate,

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate Internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2022, based on the
internal financial contrals with reference to financial statements criterla established by the Company,
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No:001076N/N500013

" =

Khushroo B. Panthaky
Partner

Membership No:042423
UDIN:22042423AGVDBEL6534

Place: Mumbai
Date: 11 April 2022
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Daman Hospitality Private Limited
Balance Sheet As At 315t March, 2022

ASSETS

Non-Current Assats
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 21 33,912.09 35,329.40
(b) Capltal Work-in-Progress 3041 3041
(¢} Intangible Assets 22 0.13 013
{d] Financlal Assets
{1} Investments 3 0:25 025
[} Other Financlal Assets ] 75.58 7062
() Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 5 1,313.40 1,28832
(i  Incoma Tax Assets (Net) 3 64.67 3433
(g) Other Non-Current Assets 7 292 468
Tatal Non Currant Assots 35,300.45 36,758.14
Currant Assots
(a) Inventaories 8 1.28 394
(b) Flnancial Assets
(i} Investments 9 500.72
(i) Trade Recelvables 10 . .
(i} Cash and Cash Equivalents 11 43.74 7.94
(iil} Loans 12 200.00 200.00
{iv) Other Fnanclal Assets 13 402.58 760.62
{c) Other Current Assets 14 52.22 1,604.32
Total Currant Assots 1,200.54 2,576.82
TOTAL ASSETS 36,599.99 39,334.96
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 15 3,935.16 3,935,115
{b} Other Equity 16 32,606.74 32,655.64
36,541.90 36,550.80
Llabllities
Non-Current Liabliities
(8} Provislons 17 10.64 9.69
Tatal Non Current Liabilities 10,84 9.59
Current Liabllities
{(a) Financial Liabilities
(1) Borrowings 18 . 2,688,00
{ll) Trade Payables 19
{8) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and
small entrprises - B
{b) total outstanding dues of craditor other than micra
antarprises and small entrprises 0.28 18.15
(i) Other Finanelal Liabilitles 20 21.15 2470
(b) Other Current Liabllities 21 24.28 3.13
{c) Pravisions 22 1 1.74 0.49
Total Currant Llabllitles 47.45 2,734.47
Total Liabllities 58,09 2,744.16
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 36,599.99 39,334.96
(Tha accompanylng Signlficant Accounting Policies and notes are an Integral part of these Financlal Statements.

As Par Our Roport of Even Date
For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board
Chartared Accountants

Firm Reglistration No. 001076N/N500013 ﬂr\- M
Vi

Khushroa B, Panthaky Pragnesh Shah abar
Partner Whale-time Diractor tor
Mambership No., 042423 DIN: 06942988 DIN: 00046112

H ardd \&
Hardlieehamira
Company Secretary
ACS No. A57B63
Flace : Mumbal
Date : 11th April, 2022

Place : Mumbal
Date : 11th April, 2022




Daman Hospitality Private Limited
Statement of Profit & Loss For The Year Ended 31st March, 2022

[Rs. In Lakhs!

Revenue:
Revenue from Operations 23 1,409.11 506.10
Other Incoma 24 149,61 66.11
Total Revenue 1,558.72 572.21
Expenses:
Employee Benefits Expense 25 74.90 66,28
Finance Costs 26 = 113
Depreclation and Amortisatlon Expense 21%22 1,409,53 1,434.46
Other Expenses 27 148.80 295,10
Total Expenses 1,633.23 1,796,97
Loss Bafore Exceptional and Tax {74.51) (1,224.76)
Exceptional item (Refer Note 41) - (895.63)
Loss Befora Tax {74.51)| (2,120.39)
Tox Expense; 5

= Current Tax - -

= Deferred Tax Charge / (Credit) {25.20) 76.33

- Prlor Year Tax Adjustment 5 (2.81)
Total Tax Expenses 25.20 75.14
Loss After Tax {49.31, (2,199.53)
Other camprehenslve Income
(i) Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to the statement of Profit and
Lass
Remeasurement beneflts of defined benefit plans 29 () 0,53 0.53
Income tax relating to above items 38 (0.12) (0.12)
Total Other Comprehensive Income for the year 0.41 0.41
Total Comprehensive Loss for the Year {48.90) {2,199.12)
Earnlngs per equity share (NomlInal value of Rs.10/- Each) 31
- Basle & Dlluted (0.13) {5.73)
The accompanying Significant Accounting Policles and notes are an integral part of these Financial Statements.

As Per Our Report of Even Date

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 001076N/N500013 A
Qmﬁv\m" V,),le"‘p/‘
Khushroo B. Panthaky Pragnesh Shah a ebar
Partner Whole-time Director rector
Membership No. 042423 DIN: 06542988 DIN: 00046112
Hosdd e
Place : Mumbai Hardik € ra
Date : 11th April, 2022 Company Secretary

ACS No. A57863
Place : Mumbai
Date : 11th Aprll, 2022




Daman Hospltallty Private Limlted
Cash Flow 5tatement for the Year Ended 31st March, 2022

(. In I.uhn

A, |CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss Befora Tax (74.51) (2,120,39)
| Adjustments For:
Exceptionla [tem s 89563
Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 1,409,53 1,434,486
Finance Casts r 113
interest Income {51.71) (65.75)
Writtan off of Property, Plant & Equipment 549 i
Prafit on sale of Mutual Funds {75.82) =
Fair valuo loss on financlal llabilltles recognised in prafit or lass
Provision Written Back - (0.38}
Sundry Balance Writton back {22.08) -
Operating Prafit Before WorkIng Capltal Changes 1,180,390 144,72
AdJustments For :
Decrease in Trade Recelvables . 22.51
Decreasa In Inventories 2.66 -
Decrease in Other Financial Assets 358.04 5.00
Dacroase/{Incraase) in Other Current Assets 1,552.08 {107.32)
Decrense/(Increase) in Loans and Advances & Other Assets {3.20) 1.B6
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Liabilities 17.61 (56.47)
Inerease/(Decrease) in Provisions .73 (3.07)
Increase/(Dacraasa) In Trade Payables & Other Liabllities 422 (5,01)
Cash Generated from Operations 1,125.04 1,22
Taxes Pald [Net of Refund) {30.35) 126.38
Net Cash ganerated from/{used In} Operating Activities (A) _3,094.69 127.60
B. |CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
| Purchase of Property Plant and Equipmant (0.00) -
|Praceed from sale of Property Plant and Equipment 2.30 .
Iavestmants In Fixed Deposit . {127.41)
Investments In Mutual Fund (500.72) 3
Interest Recelved 127.53 141.76
Net Cash generatad from/{used In) Investing Actlvitles [B) (370.89) 14.35
C. i
Repayment of Capital Contribution - "
Proceeds from Short Term Borrowings 146.58 2,858.00
Rapaymant of Short Term Borrowings (2,834,56) [170.00)
Payment te Neon Voting lass Holders - (2,832,20)
Inetest Paid - (1.13)]
Net Cash generated from/{used In) Financlng Actlvitles (C) (2,680.00) {145.33)
Incrense/(Decraase) In Cash and Cash Equivalents(A + B+ C) 35,80 (3.28)
Cash & Cash Equivalents As At Beginning of the Year 7.94 11.32 |
Cash & Cash Equivalents As At End of tha Yaar 43.74 7.94
Cash and £ash Equivalent {Refer Note 11) 43.74 7.94
Notes
" The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the ‘Indirect Method' as set out in Ind AS- 7 on statemant of Cash Flow Issued by
The Institute of Chattered Accountants of Indla.
2) Figures in bracket Indicate Cash Outflow
As Per Our Report of Even Date
For Walkar Chandlok & Co LLP For and on behali of the Bo|
Chartered Accountants
Flrm Registratlon No. 00107G6N/N500013 s -
v @_‘p%-{-\}.‘;k Ve
i
Khuihiraeo 0. Panthaky Pragnash Shah Hirdik D bn/
Partner Whale-time Director irkElor
Membership No. 042423 DIN: 06942988 DIN: 000461132
Date : 11th April, 2022 H s A
Hardik Cﬁﬂﬁ-’; RELLCL A
Place : Mumbal Company Secretary 7Y i \
Date : 11th April, 2022 ACS No. A57863 {ﬂ‘ / A
Flace ; Mumbal il ) )
Date:ilthApril 2022 1\ A=),
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1.

Daman Hospitality Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the Year Ended, 31st March, 2022
Statement of Significant Accounting Palicles
Company Overview

Daman Hospitality Private Limited, incorporated in the year 2007 under the provision of the Companies
Act, 1956 applicable in India. The Company is in the business of hotels, resorts, recreation centers,
banquets halls, conference hall, convention halls, business centers, restaurants, beauty parlor.

a) Basis for preparation of financial statements

i) Compliance with Ind AS
These financial statements (“financial statements”) have been prepared in accardance with
the Indian Accounting Standards (hereafter referred to as the “Ind AS") as notified by the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and other relevant
provisions of the Act and rules framed thereunder.

ii) Historical cost convention
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except certain
financialassets and liabilities which are measured at fair values.

ii) Rounding of Amounts
All the amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes are presented in Indian rupees
have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per the requirement of Schedule Iil, unless
otherwise states. The amount ‘0’ denotes amount less than Rs. one thousand.

iv) Current and Non-Current classification
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s
normal operating cycle (twelve months) and other criteria set out in the Schedule [Il to the Act

b) Property, plant and equipment (including Capital work-in-progress)

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, if any. Cost includes purchase price and expenditures directly attributable to bringing them
into working condition for its intended use. Freehold land and capital work in progress are carried at
cost, less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any
component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when replaced. All other repairs and
maintenance expenses are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during the reporting period in
which they are incurred.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided under the straight line method over the
useful lives of assets as prescribed in Schedule 1l to the Act, and management believes that useful life
of assets are same as those prescribed in Schedule [l to the Act.

The residual values are not mare than 5% of the original cost of the asset. The assets residual values
and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Gain or losses arising from derecognisation of property, plant and equipment are measured as
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets and are
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized.




d)

e)

g)

Daman Hospitality Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the Year Ended, 31st March, 2022

Intangible assets

Intangible Assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are stated at acquisition cost,
net of recoverable taxes, trade discount and rebate less accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes purchase price and any expenditure directly attributable
to bringing the asset to its working condition for the Intended use.

Subsequent cost are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

An intangible asset is derecognized on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected
from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized
in statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

Intangible assets are amortized over the period of 3 years on a straight line basis from date they are
available for use. The estimated useful life of an identifiable intangible asset is based on number of
factors including the effect of obsolescence, demand, competition and other economic factors and
level of maintenance expenditures required to obtain the expected future cash flows from the assets,

Inventories

Consumables, stores and spares are valued at lower of cost computed on weighted average basis or
net realisable value after providing cost of obsolescence, if any. The cost of inventories comprises cost
of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition. Net realisable value is estimated selling price in ordinary course of business less the
estimated cost necessary to make the sale.

Investment
The Company does not have investment other than the investment in Saraswat Bank.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognized at net of transaction costs incurred and measured at amortised cost
using effective interest method. Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has
an unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the
reporting period.

Effective interest method:

The effective interest method {5 a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and
of allocating interest expenses over the relevant periad. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payment (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where apprapriate, a shorter period, to the gross
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Revenue from Sale of Service:

Revenue from sale of services is recognized as and when the services agreed are rendered, net of
discount to the customers and amount collected on behalf of third parties such as service tax, Goods
and Service tax, luxury tax.

Dividend and interest income
Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive payment has
been established (provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the company
and the amount of income can be measured reliably). " "'/
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Daman Hospitality Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the Year Ended, 31st March, 2022

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is
accrued on a timely basis, by reference to the amortised cost and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

h) Employee Benefits

Short-term employee benefits

The amount of short term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services
rendered by employees are recognized as an expense during the period when the employees render
the services.

Post-employment benefits

Defined benefit plan

The liability recognized in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is the present
value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period. The defined benefit
obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future
cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds
that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the defined benefit obligation. This
cost is included in employee benefit expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognized in the period in which they occur, directly In other comprehensive income
and

is not reclassified to profit or loss. They are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes
in equity and in the balance sheet. Defined benefit costs are categorized as follows:

- service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on
curtailments and settlements);
net interest expense; and

- remeasurement

The company presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in Statement of Profit and
Loss in the line item ‘Employee benefits expenses’. Curtailment gains and losses are accounted for as
past service costs.

Defined Contribution Plan
Payments to defined contribution benefit plans are recognized as an expense in the Statement of
Profit and Loss during the period in which employee renders related service.

i) Forelgn currency transactions and balances
i,  Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on

the date of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the
year-end are restated at the closing rate of exchange prevailing on the reporting date.




i)

k)

Daman Hospitality Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the Year Ended, 31st March, 2022

Any exchange difference arising on account of settlement of foreign currency transactions and
restatement of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency is recognized in
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
recorded using the exchange rates at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary items measured
at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the
fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured
at fair value is treated in line with the recagnition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of
the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognized in other
comprehensive income or Statement of Profit and Loss are also recognized in other comprehensive
income or Statement of Profit and Loss, respectively).

Income Tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax, Tax is recognized in Statement of
Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in the other comprehensive
income or in equity. In which case, the tax is also recognized in other comprehensive income or
equity.

Current Tax

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid
to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted at
the Balance sheet date. The tax liabilities in presented as net of advance tax for that particular
assessment year.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities used in the computation of taxable profit and their carrying amount in the financial
statement. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates (and laws) that have been
enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period. The carrying amount of deferred
tax liabilities and assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses,
only if, it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilize those temporary
differences and losses

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are off set where the Company has a legally enforceable right to
offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Earnings Per Share

Basic Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of the company by
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year.Earnings
considered in ascertaining the Company's earnings per share is the net profit for the year.

Diluted earnings per share

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year
attributable to equity shareholders and the welghted average number of shares outstanding during the
year is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.
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Daman Hospitality Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements far the Year Ended, 31st March, 2022

Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset in one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument in another entity.

i)

ii)

a)

b)

€)

iii)

iv)

Financial Assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets and liabilities are initially recognized at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities, which
are not at fair value through profit or loss, are adjusted to the fair value on initial recognition.
Purchase and sale of financial assets are recognised using trade date accounting.

Subsequent measurement

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (AC)

A financial asset Is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms
of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

A financial asset is measured at FVTOC! if it is held within a business model whose objective is
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVYTPL)
A financial asset which 1s not classified in any of the above categories are measured at FVTPL.

Other Equity Investments

All other equity and mutual fund investments are measured at fair value, with value changes
recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss, except for those equity investments for which the
Company has elected an irrevocable option to present the value changes in ‘Other Comprehensive
Income’.

Impairment of Financial Assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the company applies the expected credit loss model for evaluating
impairment of financial assets other than those measured at fair value throush profit and loss
(FVTPL),

Expected credit losses are measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal to:

= The twelve months expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from those
default events on the financial instrument that are possible with 12 months after the reporting
date); or

s Full lifetime expected credit losses {expected credit losses that result from all possible default
events over the life of the financial instrument)

For trade Receivables Company applies ‘simplified approach’ which requires expected lifetime
losses to be recognises from initial recognition of the receivables. The Company uses historical
default rates to determine impairment loss on the portfolio of trade receivables. At every
reporting date these historical default rates are reviewed and changes in the forward looking
estimates are analysed.
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i)

)

ii)

a)

b)

Daman Hospitality Private Limited
Motes to the financial statements for the Year Ended, 31st March, 2022

For other assets, the Company uses 12 months Expected Credit Loss model (ECL) to provide for
impairment loss where there is no significant increase in credit risk. If there is significant
increase in credit risk full lifetime ECL is used.

Financial Liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement
All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities at FVTPL include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as FYTPL. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading
if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. Gains or losses on labilities
held for trading are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment
to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make
a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee
contracts are recognized initially as a lability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured
at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind
AS 109 and the amount recognized less cumulative amartization. Amortization is recognized as
finance income in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the halance sheet date, the carrying
amounts approximate fair value due to the short term maturity of these instruments.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest rate method.

Where the terms of a financial liability is re-negotiated and the Company issues eguity
instruments to a creditor to extinguish all or part of the liability (debt for equity swap), a gain or
loss is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss; measured as a difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability and the fair value of equity instrument issued.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance
sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

m) Significant management judements in applying accounting policies and estimation uncertainty

The estimates and judgments used in the preparation of the financial statements are continuously
evaluated by the Company and are based on historical experience and various other assumptions and
factors (including expectations of future events) that the Company believes to be reasonable under
the existing circumstances. Difference between actual results and estimates are recognized in the
period in which the results are known/ materialized.

The said estimates are based on the facts and events, that existed as at the reporting date, or that
occurred after that date but provide additional evidence about conditions existing on the reporting
date. = e
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Daman Hospitality Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the Year Ended, 31st March, 2022

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assessment is done at each Balance Sheet date to evaluate whether there is any indication that a non-
financial asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, the Company estimates the asset's
recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount i5 the higher of an asset’s or Cash Generating
Units (CGU's) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.lt is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its
recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions
are taken into account, if no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is
used.

Depreciation/ amortisation and useful lives of property, plant and equipment / intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated over the estimated useful lives of the assets, after
taking into account their estimated residual value. Management reviews the estimated useful lives and
residual values of the assets annually in order to determine the amount of depreciation to be recorded
during any reporting period. The useful lives and residual values are based on the Company’s historical
experience with similar assets and take inte account anticipated technological changes. The
depreciation for future periods is adjusted if there are significant changes from previous estimates.

Recoverability of trade receivables

Judgments are required in assessing the recoverability of overdue trade recejvables and determining
whether a provision against those receivables is required. Factors considered include the credit rating
of the counterparty, the amount and timing of anticipated future payments and any possible actions
that can be taken to mitigate the risk of non-payment.

Provisionsand Contingent Liabilities

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and
the amount can be reliably estimated.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax
rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost,

Contingent Liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past events but
their existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Company or where any present obligation cannot be
measured in terms of future outflow of resources or where a reliable estimate of the obligation cannot
be made.

Impairment of financial assets

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and
expected cash loss rates. The Company uses judement in making these assumptions and selecting the
inputs to the impairment calculation, based on Company's past history, existing market conditions as
well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

Defined henefit obligation (DBO)

Management's estimate of the DBO is based on a number of critical underlying assumptions such as
standard rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate and anticipation of future salary increases.
Variation in these assumptions may significantly impact the DBO amount and the annual defined
benefit expenses. i ;
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Daman Hospitality Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the Year Ended, 31st March, 2022

Fair value measurement

Management uses valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial instruments (where
active market quotes are not available) and non-financial assets. This involves developing estimates
and assumptions consistent with how market participants would price the instrument. Management
bases its assumptions on observable data as far as possible but this is not always available. In that case
management uses the best information available. Estimated fair values may vary from the actual
prices that would be achieved in an arm’s length transaction at the reporting date.

Recent accounting pronouncements

Al the Ind AS issued and notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘MCA’} under the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) till the financial statements are authorised
have been considered in preparing these financial statement.

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ('MCA') notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards
from time to time. On March 23, 2022, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2022, as below.

Ind AS16 - Property Plant and Equipment - The amendment clarifies that excess of net sale praceeds of
items produced over the cost of testing, if any, shall not be recognised in the profit or loss but
deducted from the directly attributable costs considered as part of cost of an item of property, plant,
and equipment. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or
after April 1, 2022. The Company has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on its financial
statements.

Ind AS 37- Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets -The amendment specifies that the
‘cost of fulfilling' a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the contract’. Costs that
relate directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (examples
would be direct labour, materials ) or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling
contracts (an example would be the allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property,
plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract). The effective date for adoption of this
amendment is annual perjods beginning on or after April1,2022, although early adoption is permitted.
The Company has evaluated the amendment and the impact is not expected to be material.
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Daman Hospitality Privata Limited

Notes to Financials Statements for the Year Ended 31st March, 2022

Note No. 2.2 - Other Intangible Assets

(Re. In Lakhs)
Particulars Software Total
Gross Block
As At 1st April, 2020 62.74 62.74
Additions - -
Disposals = =
As At 31st March, 2021 62.74 62.74
As At 1st April, 2021 62.74 62.74
Additions - -
|Disposals - =
As At 31st March, 2022 62.74 62.74
As At 1st April, 2020 62.61 62.61
Amortisation For The Year - -

(2} - -
As At 31st March, 2021 62.61 62,61
As At 1st April, 2021 62.61 62.61
Amortisation For The Year - -
Reverse Charge on Disposal - -
As At 31st March, 2022 62.61 62.61
Net Block
As At 315t March, 2022 0.3 0.3
As At 315t March, 2021 0.13 013




Daman Heipliallly Prlvatle Limited
Hotai ta Finanelals S4atements for the Year Ended 31st March, 2022

3 Investments - Non Current
{Ra. In Lakhs)

Noy Nas
Asat Asat
Particulars Annt Aval
315t March,2022 | 335t Marchzozy | 214t Marchi3032 | 33t Mareh 2014
Invesiment Measured at Falr Value Through Other
Comprehensive Incoma
unaueted (ylly paid Eaulty Shares
‘The Saraswat Co-op. Bank Limited of A1, 10/- anch 2,500 2,500 0.2% 0.2%
otal !‘_s_no _‘!‘EW 0.25 0,25
{R3. In Lakht)
Partlculsrs Asat Arst
31st March,2022 | 3131 Mareh, 2021
Aggregate Amount of Unquoted Investments 0.25 0.25
i Qiher Financlaly Asats - Non Currant
(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particuls Asal Asat
T 313t March,2022 | 331t Morch,2031
8] Fizad Depaiit 11,00 41.00
b} interest Accrued on Fixed Deposlls 34.50 29.62
[Feial 75.58 F0.62
] Oeferred Tax Assets (Nat)
{Rs. In Lakhs)
Partlcul Asat Asat
kN 315t March,2022 | 315t March,2021
I
Proparty, Plant and Equipmenis 13,893.50) [3,952.65,
] {2,893.50)] {3.952.63)
Previslon lor Empleyea Banefits 3.1 156
Carryforward Losses 5,209.77 5,218.41
) 5,212.89 5.240.97
F.'mrnmd Tax Assels (Nat) 1,313.40 1,288.32
s, In Lakhs|
Asal Asat
il 318t March, 2022 | 333t March; 2021
{Credit)/ charge In staternent of Profit and Loss (25.20) 76.33
Credit)/ charpe In statement of Bihar Compiahiehilve Incame 0.12 0,12
Total Duferred Tax (Assat)/Uability 25.08] 76.45

Refer Nole ; 30 for detall Disclosura
Noter The Company has recognlied dofrrad (ax assels on carrled forwarded losses based on the reasonable certainlty of fulure taxable
prafit which s sulficient 1o oflsel iha carried forward Josses on which deferred 1ax assels has been created.

] INCOME TAX ASSETS (NET) - Non Current

(M. In Lakhs)
Asat Asat
Partlculars 31st March,2022 | 31st March,2021
Rs. Rs

Income Tax Recelvable 64,67 fIRE]
Tatal &4.67 34.33

7 Other Non Current Asisis

Rs. In Lakhs]
Asat Asal
ROEAN 315t March, 2032 | 315t March. 2021
(8] Capltal Advanees
Unsecurad Conslderad good . .
Unsecured Consldered doubtiul = 170.95
- 17045
Less: Pravislon far Doubtiul Advances 0.00 (270,95
(b] Prepald Expenses 2.92 4.68
(e} Other Advances
Unsecured Considered good 0.00 000
Unsacured Contidared doubilul % 1150
0.00 11.50
Less: Provision for Doubliul Advances 0.00 (11.50)
0.00 0,00
Tolal 2.92 4.68
|
[ ] Invantarles
{Rs. In Lakhs]
Asat Asat
Particeiats 3iat Murch, 3022 | 330 Marchzo21
Siaret and Sparet 128 194
Total = 120 394




Daman Hospitality Private Limited

Notes to Financlals Statements for the Year Ended 31st March, 2022

9

10

i1

Investments - Current

(Rs. in Lakhs)
B As at Az at
AR 315t March,2022 | 31st March,2021
Investments Measured At Fair Value Through Profit Or Loss
Investments in Mutual Fund
Aditya Birla MF 500.72 -
Total 500.72 -
feul As at As at
PRy 31st March,2022 | 31st March,2021
Cost of the Quoted Investment 4B80.65 -
Market Value of of Quoted Investment 500.72 -
Trade Receivables
(Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars hs it rig
31st March,2022 | 31st March,2021
Trade Recelvables
Unsecured Considered good - -
Unsecured Considered doubtiul - 3.09
- 3.09
Less : Provision for doubtful debts 0.00 (3.09)
Total B -
Cash and Cash Equivalents
{Rs. in Lakhs)
Partleulars Rt heak
31st March,2022 | 31st March,2021
(i) Cash on Hand 0.34 D39
() Balances with Banks in Current Accounts 43.40 7.55
Total 43,74 7.94




12

13

i

Loans - Current
(Rs. In Lakhs)
teul As at As at
Partizulars 315t Mareh,2022 | 31st March,2021
Inter Corporate Deposit to Others
Unsecurad, Conslderad good 200.00 200,00
Total 200.00 200.00
Other Financial Assets - Current
(Rs. In Lakhs)
leul Asat Az at
PATHCar 31st March,2022 | 31st March,2021
Unsecured, Considered Good Unless Otherwise Stated
Other Receivables - Related Party (Refer Note 30) - 14.24
Security deposit 23 1.96
Fixed Deposit 114,22 286,29
Interest Accrued on Fixed Deposits 9.76 2311
Interest Accrued an Deposits lying with High Court - 386.00
Interest Accrued on ICD 76.29 49,02
Total 402,58 760.62
Other Current Assets
(Rs. in Lakhs)
partieul As at As at
articulars 315t March,2022 | 31st March,2021
Advance other than Capital Advances
Unsecured, Considered good 49,39 20.19
Unsecured, Considerad Credit Impaired 4 7.49
49.39 27.68
Less: Allowances for expreccted credit loss 0.00 (7.49)
49,33 20.19
Balances with Statutory Authorities® - 1,448.30
Duties and Taxes (Input Tax net of liahllity) % 106.97
Prepald Expenses 2.83 28.86
Total 52.22 1,604.32

*Represent deposits with Bombay High Court as a securlty for petition for winding up filed by the Debentures

halders of the company Rs. NIL {P.Y. Rs. 1448.30).




Damsn Hospltality Privata Limited
Hotes to Finangials Statamonts for tho Yoar Ended 11st March, 2022

15 Equity Share Capital

As at 313t March,2022 As at 315t March,2021
Equity Share Capltal Humber n':. in Lakhs Humber Rs'. in Lakhs
Authorised
Voting elass of Equity Shares of Rs 10 each 58,499,995 5,850.00 58,499,995 5,850.00
Mon Voting Class A Equity Shares of Rs 10 each 1,500,000 150.00 1,500,000 150.00
Mon Voting Class B Equity Shares of Rs 1 each 50 0,00 50 0.00
Tatal 0,000,045 %,000.00 60,000,045 %,000.00
Issuad, Subscribed & Fully Pald up shares
Vating class of Equity Shares of Rs 10 each 38,402,018 1,840.20 38,401,918 1,840.19
Mon Voting Class A Equity Shares of Rs 10 each 949,620 94.96 249,620 94.96
Man Voting Class B Equity Shares of Rs 1 aach 28 0.00 8 0.00
Total 39,351,664 3,935,168 19,351,566 3.935.15

a tHon of the shares at the Beginnf
As at 31st March, 2022 As at 31st March,2021
Hio. Ra. In Lakhs Ha. Rs. in Lakhs
At the Beglnning of the Year 19,351,566 1,915.15 19,351,566 3,935,15
tssued During the Year 98 0.01 - .
Bought Back During the Year : . . .
Quistanding at the End of the Year 39,351,464 3,935.16 19,151,564 3,935.15

b Terms/Rights Attached to Equity Sharas
The Company has three clasies of equity shares:
A) Vating Equity Shares:
Each voting equity share has a par value of R5,10 per share, Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share. Shares arg transferrable for one holder to another wilh
the consent of rest of the shareholders. Dividends will ba proposed and distributed equally among all the shareholders, The voting equity shares have a right to equal
allocation in the distribution of surplus asset of the Company on its Uguldation.

B) Hon Voting Class A Equity Shares (NVCAE Shares):

Each Hon Voting Class A Equity Shares has & par valua of Rs 10 each, These are non voting and non participating shares. They are entitied to 20% of dividends of the
Company,and if holdars tharcof own loss than 15,080,000 HVCAE shares, then those shares will be entitled to their pro-rata portion of that 205 of the dividends of the
Company,

€) Non Voting Class B Equity Shares (HVCDE Shares):
Each Hon Yoling Class B Equily Shares has & par value of Re 1 gach, These are non voting and non participating shares, The holder of NVCBE shares shall only claim te
tecelve prorata with other HVCBE shares an agreegate amount of distributian equal Lo Rs. 4.90 Lakhs which shall bo allocable between all NVCBE shares.

¢ Datalls of Shareholders Holding More Than 5% Shares In The Company

Equity Shares As at 115t March, 2022 As at 31st March, 2021
Ho, of $hares % of Holding Ho, of Shares % of Holding
Delta Corp Lid - Holding Company 38,402,016 100.00%] 37,747,905 98.10%/
38,402,018 100,00%| 37,747,905 98.10%
A% at 313t Mareh, 2022 As at 313t Aarch,2021
Non Yoting Qlasi A Bquity Shares Ho,of Shares % of Halding__| _Ho.of Shares % of Holding
Delta Corp Limited - Halding Campany 949,620 100.00% 044,775 99.49%
949,620 100.00% ‘144,7-7! 99.4%%
A oL 3151 March, 2022 T A3 at 315t March, 2011
Moin Vet Clitd B Explity Shac Ho.of Sharas % of Halding Wo.of Shares | % of Holding
Delta Corp Limited - Holding Company 8 100.00% 7 96.43%
28 100.00%! 27 96.43%

d  Share reservad for Issue undar Fully Convertible Debantures, & terms of Fully Convertible
1) Sharas resarved for {ssue undar Fully Convertible Debentures:
Fully Convartible Debentures Series D, is converted Into 98 voling equily shares of Rs 10 each on 07th Feb 2022,

o The company has not lssued any equily shares without payment being recetved in cash during the five years Immediately preceeding 31st March, 2022
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Daman Hospitality Private Limited
Notes to Financials Statements for the Year Ended 31st March, 2022

16 Other Equity

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars As ut Asat

31st March,2022 31st March,2021
a) Securities Premium
QOpening Balance 12,731.37 12,731.37
Additlon/ (Deletion) during the year 192.91 .
Closing Balance 12,924.28 12,731.37
h) Capital Contribution
Opening Balance 31,425.45 31,425.45
Addition/ (Deletion) during the year ) g
Closing Balance 31,425.45 31,425.45
c) Equity Companent of Compound Financial Intruments
Opening Balance 192.92 192.92
Addition/ (Deletion) durlng the year 192,92 -
Closing Balance a 192,92
d) Other Comprehensive Incame
Opening Balance 372 i
(+) : Movement In OCI (Net) during the year 0.41 0.41
Closing Balance 4,13 1.72
e) Retalned Earning
Opening Balance (11,697.81) (9,498.28)
(+) : Net Loss For the Current Year (49.31) (2,199.53)
Closing Balance (11,747.12) {11,697.81)
Total 32,606.74 32,655.64
Nature and Purpose of Reserves ;

Securltles Premium : Security Premium Account is used to record the premium on issue of shares. This reserve |s utilised

in accordance with the pravisions of the companies Act, 2013,

Retained Earnings : The amount that can be distributed by the company as dividends to its equity sahreholders.

Capital Contribution : The eapital contribution has been created as per the requirement of Indlan Accounting Standards

on guarantee charges. Amount of Rs. 31,218.33 Lakh is an account of classification of short term borrowings frorm Delta

Corp limited to other equity as contribution from parent company. This amount will have preference aver equity shares

at the time of liquidation of the company.

Equity Component of Compound Financlals Instrument : This pertains to the equity portion of the compeund financials

instruments. The company has D Series fully convertible debentures. Durlng the year company has coverted D Series

debentures into 98 Vating class equity sahres. [ncurrent year values is Rs. NIL (P.Y. Rs. 192.92 Lakh)

Other Comprenesive Income: The amount includes re-measurement of the defined benefit obligations.




Daman Hospitality Privale Limlted
Hotes to Financials Statements for the Yaar Ended 31st March, 2022

17 Provision - Hon Currant

{Rs. In Lakhs)

As at As at
Particulars 318t March,2022 34st March, 2021
Gratulty {Rofer Hote 29) 10.64 9.69
Total 10,64 9.69
18 Dorrawing - Current
{Rs. in Lakhs)
As at As at
Particulars I1st March,2022 | 21stMarch, 2021
n T n
From Related Party
- Repayable on demand and fnterest free {Refer Nota 30) . 2,488.00
Total u 2,680,00
19 Trade Payables
{Rs. In Laki}
As at As at
|Particulars J1stMarch,2022 | 31t March,2021
o) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises . .
b) tatal outstanding dues of related party . 5
) tatal autstanding duas of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 0.28 18.15
Total 0,28 10.15
{Rs. in Lakhs)
As at As at
Patails of dua to Micro, Small and Medlum Enterprises I1st March,2022 315t Mareh, 2021

The Principal amount remalning unpaid at the end of the year

The Interest amount Ing unpaid at the end of the year

The amount of Interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act 2005 along with the|
amount of the payment made ta the supplier beyond the appofiled day during tha yoar

The amount of interest due and payable for the peried of delay in making payment (which have been
paid but beyond the appeinted day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under
the MSMED Act, 2006

The amount of Interest accrued and remalning unpald at the end of each accounting year

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even In the succeeding years, until such)
date when the {aterest dues as above are actually pald to the small enterprise for the purpass of
disallowance a3 a deductible expenditura under section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006

Dues to micro and small enterpirses have boen dotermined to the extent such partles have been indentified on the basis of information avallable

with the Company.

20  Other Financlals Liabllities = Current

{Rs. in Lakhs)

As at As at
Particulars IstMarch,2022 | 34st March,2021
Employeee Dues 4.24 5.86
Others Payable™ ¥ 591
Capital Creditors u 1.76
Provision for Exp 16.91 9147
Total 21.18 24.70
** Ropresent retention payabale of Ba, HIL {Previous year 3,91 lakhs)
21 Other Current Liabllitles
{Rs. in Lakhs)
particul As at As at
articulars 315t Mareh, 2022 31zt March, 2021
Duties and Taxes 14,28 113
Total 14.28 1,13
11 Provisiens - Currant
(Rs. in Lakhs)
As at As at
[ Farticulr MstMarch, 2022 | istMerch,2021
Leave Encashment (Refer Hote 29) 1.74 0.49
Total 1,74 0.49




Daman Hospitality Prlvate Limited

Nates to Financlals Statemenis for the Year Endad 315t March, 2022
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Revanue From Opearations
{Rs, In Lakhs)
Year Ended Year Ended
Pl 315t March, 2022 | 315t March, 2021
Sale of Sorvice 1,662.75 597.20
Less: Goods & Service Tax (GST) (253.64) (91,10)
Total (Refar Hota 46) 1,409.11 506,10
Other Income
(Rs. in Lakhs)
Yaar Ended Year Ended
FArticulary 313t March,2022 | 313t March, 2021
Interest Income on ;
Fixed Deposit with Bank 171 23.10
IncomaTax Refund - 12.65
Inter Corporate Deposit 10.00 30.00
Galn on Investment 75.82 .
Provislon written back - 0.36
Sundry Balance written back 12,08 .
Misecellangous Income A E
Total 149,61 66.11
Employas Baneflt Expenses
(Rs. In Lakhs)
Year Ended Year Endad
Partlculars 31st March,2022 | 31st March,2021
(a) Salaries and Incentives 66.73 63,29
(b) Cantribution to Provident fund (Refer Note 29) 342 3.29
{€) Gratuity (Refer Note 29) 1.75 2.04
{d) Leave encashment {Refer Note 29) 1.25 (2.08)
{e) Staff Walfara Expansos 1.75 0.74
Total 74.90 66.28
Finance Cost
(Rs. In Lakhs)
Year Ended Year Ended
Partlculars 315t March,2022 | 31st March,2021
Interest Othar than Term Loan = 113
|‘I'|:|!=| - 113
Other Expenses
(Rs. In Lakhs)
Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars 31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
Rs. Rs.
Payment to Auditors [Refer Note 40) 3.50 3.50
Legal and Profasslonal Foos 51.45 B4.70
Written off af Property, Plant & Equipmant 5.49 .
Watar Charges 0.31 033
Insurance 27,16 25.56
Repalr and Mainienance
- Bulldings 3.64 z
Rates and 1axes 11.03 1065
Travolling Expenses 0.30 -
Dank Charges 1.88 247
Foreign Exchonge Loss % 163,00
Printing & Statlonery 0.01 "
Outsource Manpower Services . 143
Sundry Balance W/aff 3.16 .
Miscellaneous Expenses 0.87 3.46
Totul 148,80 295.10

Nota 1 ; During the (inanclal year 2021-22, the company had recerdad bad debts of Rs, Rs, 3.09 Lakh (P.Y. Rs, 0.19 Lakh). The same has

been written off agalnst the provision of doubtiul debts
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Daman Hospitality Private Limited
Notas to Financlals Statements for the Year Ended 315t March, 2022

28 Caontingent Liabilitles and Commitmants

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars ASAL ALKt
31st March,2022 31st March, 2021
(1} cContingent liabilities
(a) clalms agalnst the Company's Disputed Liabilitles not Acknowladgad as Debts
- Clalms agalnst the Company not acknowledged as Debts -Custem liabllity (Refer Note 1) B9.63
- Qutstanding Liabllity of Tax Deducted at Source 8s per Tracas Wabslte 11.75 1175
s 101.38
Note 1 Represent Bank Guaranter glven by the Company ta Customs (faveuring the Prasident of Indla) for Import of hotel equipments & furniture under Export]
Pramotion Guarantae Scheme amounting to Rs. NIL {P.Y. R3.89.63 Lakh).
{Rs. In Lakhs)
(i) Capltal Commitmants Asat As at
31st March,2022 315t March,2021
- Estimated amount of contracts ramalning to be executed on eapltal account and not provided for (Net of Advances)
17.98 1798
17.98 17.58
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23  Employee Benefits :
Brief deseription of the Plans:
The Campany has various schemes for employee benefits such a3 Provident Fund, Gratuity and Leave Encashment.The Company's defined cantrlbution plans are Pravident Fund {In
tase of certaln employees) . The Company has no further obligation beyond making the contributions 1o such plans,
A, Deflned Denefit Plans
The Campany's defined benefit plans include Gratuity (unfunded). The gratuity plan is govered by the Payment of Gratulty Act,1972 under which an employee who has completed five
yoars of service Is entitiled ta sprcific benafits. The level of benefits provided depends on the member's length of service and salary at retirement age,
I Principal actoarial sssumptlons used:

Gratuity {Unfunded)
Particulars Asat Asat
31st March,2022 315t March,2021
Discount Rate (per annum) 6.41% 6.06%
Salary escalation rate 7.50%) 7.50%
Rate of Employee Turnover 15.00% 15,00%
indian Assured Uves|indlan Assured Lives
Mortality Rate During Empleyment Mortallty  2012-14(Mortality  {2008.08)
[Urban} Ultimate
Expected Rate of return on Plan Assets {per annum) NA NA
II. Exponsas recognised In Statement of Profit and Loss
|Rs. In Lakhs
Gratuity {Unfunded)
Partlcular Asat As at
315t March,2022 | 31st March,2021
Current Service Cost 118 1,42
Nat interast 0.59 062
Total Expanses recagnised in the Stat t of Profit And Loss* 1.75 2,04

*The current service cost and the net Interest expenses for the year ara included In the 'Employae benefits expenses’ line item In the statement of profit & loss accaunt.

Iil. Expenses Recognized In the Other Comprehensive Income {OCI)
{Rs. In Lakhs)

Gratul nfunded

Particusirs 202122 202021
Actuatial (GaTns)/Losses en Obligation For the Year - Due to changes in financlal assumptions {0.20) 0.09
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligation For the Year - Dua to expariance adjustmant {0.33) (0.62)
Actuarlal (Galns)/Losses on Obligation For the Year - Due to Change in Demographic Assumption 0.00 .
Net {Income)/Expense For the Period Recagnized in OCI {0.53) [0.53)
‘The remeasurement of the net defined benefit liabllity [s Included in other :urnprehenslve Incame,
Iv. Movements In the present value of defined bencfit obligation are as follows:

(Rs. In Lakhs)
Particular 2021-22 2020-21
Defined Benefit Obligatlon at the beginning of the year 9.69 10,00
Current Service Cast 1.16 1.42
Net Interast Cast 0.59 0.62
Actuarial (Galns)/Losses an Obligation For the Year - Due to changes In financial assumptions. (0.20) 0,09
Actuarial (Galns)/Losses on Obligation For the Year - Due to experience adjustment (9.33) (0.62)
(Benefit Pald Directly by the Employer) (0.27) (1.82)
Dofined Benedit Qbligation at the and of the year 10.64 9.69
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v, Cash flow projection: From ihe Employer
{Rs. In Lakhs)

|Particular 2021:22 2020-21
{Projected Benefits Payable In Future Years Fram the Date of Reparting

1st Follawing Yaar 151 155
2nd Following Year 138 121
3rd Following Year 126 111
d1h Following Year 117 1.01
5th Following Year 1.07 0.53
Sum of Years 6 Ta 10 4,08 358
sum of Years 11 and above 5,52 4.80

The Plan typlcaily 1o expose the Company ta acturlal risk such as Interest Risk, Longevity Risk and Salary Risk

a) Interest Risk : A decrease In the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability

b) Longavity Risk : Tha present value of defined benefit plan llabllity is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan particlpants bath during and after their
emplayemeant, An increase In tha life expentancy of the plan participants will increase the plan's llability.

¢) 5alary Risk : The present valua of the dofined plan llabllity Is calculated by reference o the future salaries of plan participants. As such, an Increase in the salary of the plan's
participants will Increase Lhe plan's Hability,

vl. Sensitivity Analysis
{Rs. in Lakhs)

Projected Benefits Payable in Future Years From the Date of Reporting 2021-22 2020-21
Projected Benefit Obligation on Current Assumptions 10,64 9.68
Dalta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Discaunting {0.53) (0.48)
Dalta Effect of -1% Change In Rate of Olscounting 0.59 0,54
Dalta Effect of +1% Change In Rate of Salary Increase 0.58 0,53
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase (0.53) (0.48)
Delta Effect of +1% Change In Rate of Employee Turnover (0.04) {0.05)
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover 0.05 0.05

Tha abova sansitivity analyses arc based an change In an assumption while holding all other assumptians constant. In practice, this is unfikely to oceur, and changes In some of the

ions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarlal assumptlons the same method (present value of the deflned
benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit eredit methed at the end of the reperting period) has been appliad as when calculating the defined benefit liability recognised In
the balance sheet.

The estimates of future salary incraases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of Inflation, senlority, promation and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the

employment market.
B. Defined contribution plans
The Campany also has certain defined cantributian plans. The contributions are made 1o registered provident fund administered by the governmant. Tha obligation of the Company is
limited ta the amount contributed and it has ne further contractual nor any constructive obligation, The expense recognised during the period towards defined contribution plans are
as lollows:
Charge to the Statement of Proflt and Loss based an tontributlons:

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars [ 021-22 [ 2020.21

Employar’s cantribution to Reglonal Provident Fund Office | 3.42 | 3.29

€. Leave obligations

The leave obligations cover the Company’s lability for earned leave,

The amount of the provision of Re 1.74 lakhs (31st March, 2021 Rs 0,49 |akhs) Is presented as currant, sinco the Company does not have an uncanditional right to defer settlement
for any of these obligations.

{Rs. In Lakhs)
Partlculars
Leava Encashment
202122 2020-21
Current Service Cost 135 | {3.08)
Totsl {Income) / Expenses racagnised In tha Stat t of Proflt And Loss 128) (3.08)]

Al
[y hlmath
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30 Information In accordance with the requirements of Indisn Accounting Standaid 24 on Related Pany Disclosures,

{1} Heolding Company
Delta Corp Limited

) Falloss Subsidlaries
= Oulla Ploasura Crubie Company Private Limited {OPCCPL)
# Deltin Hepal Privaie Limited {DHPL)
= Highstiget Crulies and Entertainmant Privale Limited (HCEPL)

{1} Kay Mansgament Persanneli {KMP):
* Mr. Jaydev Mody - Chalrman of holding company
« M. Pragnaih Shih - Whele-tima Directer
# Mr. Sharukh Ghyara - Director {w.e.f 26th February, 2019 1o 12th June 2021 )
= hir. Ravindarkumar Jal  Dirgetor {w.e.f 18 11th Jupe 2021}
* Mr. Anill Malani - Director (w.e.f to 111h June 2021)
+ Mr. Hardik Dhabar - Directar (v.e.l 1o 11ih June 2021}
» Mr, Chelan Desal - Blrector (w.e.f to 11th June 2021 10 11,10,2021)
* MAr. Rajesh Jaggl - Director (w.e.0ta 11.10.2021)
* Br.Hardik Chandra-Company Secrelary

(iv} Relatlvet of Key Manageris! F |
Mrs. 2in Mody {ZM}) - Wife of Chalrman ol holding company

(v} Enterprise over which Key Mansgerial Personnel or Relathve of KMP exercise sipnificant Influenca,

AZD & Parinara (AZ8]
Freedom Registry Lid (FRLY
{A. In Lakhi)
Oatalls of transnetlonn earred sut with related pariies In the ordinary course of business
Indlvidual / Enterpriies Over
hich such Individuals/KMPs or
Halding Company Fellow Subsidlaries hd Total
Nalure of Transactlons thalr Relatives Exarelses
Signifteant inflvencs er Gentrsl
w0-n 1026-21 2021-12 2030-21 2011-22 2020-21 2021-02 2020-21
Shara Intoma
Dalts Corp Limitad 1,409.11 506.10 : . : = 1,40%.11 506.10
Tatal 1 1,408.11 506.10 - * = - 1,409.11 504,10
Sale of Property, Plant & Equipmant
231 - - - + - 2.31 .
1.31 - - - = = 231 =
Deia Corp Limited 14655 2,858 . - - - 146.56 2850.00
Total: 14636 2,858.00 : - - : 146.56 2,858.00
Laan Repsld
Dolta Corp Limited 2,834.56 170.00 - = - = 2,834.56 170.00
Total: 2,030.56 170.00 - - - - 43458 176.00
Legal & Prafsilanal Faes
AZD & Pariners 60,60 47,73 &0,60 67.70
Freedam Registey Ltd (FAL) . . . - 015 015 015 018
Total 1 - - = = 60.75 67.94 60.75 67.94 |

ST
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(Rs. In Lakhs)
BiDatalls of balsnces outstanding with relsted partles
Individual / Enterprises Qvar
which such Indlviduals/KnMPs
Holding Company Fellow Subsidlaries or their Relatives Exerclies Total
sllﬂlﬂ“l“ Influence ar
Naturs of Transactions cantral
Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
31st March, | 31st March, | 31st March, | 31st March, | 31stMarch, | 31st March, | 31stMarch, | 31stMarch,
2012 2021 2012 2021 2022 021 2022 2021
Loan Payable
Delta Corp Limited - 2,688,00 - . . . - 2,683.00
Total ¢ - 2,688.00 - - . 0 - 2,688.00
Other Payabla
AZB & Partnors 3 = - - 2 217 C 9.17
Total : - = = = = 9.17 - 9.17
Other Recelvables
Daltln Nepal Private Limlted - = - 14,24 - - - 14.24
Tatal : = = = 14.24 = = 3 14.24
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EE]

Earning Per Shares (EPS)

Earnlngs Per Share I3 calculated by dividing the profit attributable to the equily sharcholders by the welghted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Numbers used

for ealeulnting basic and diluted earnings per cquity share are as stated below:

(Rs, In Lakhs unless stated otherwiie)

Particulars Asat Asat

313t March,2022 | 313t March,2021
Loss after tax {49.31) EIIBB.H)
Welghted Average Number of Equity Shares used as Denominator for
Calculating Baslc Earnings per shara {nos.) 184.02 384.02
Earnlngs Per Share - Basic and Diluted Earnlng per Share (In Rs.] EA;} (5.73)
Face valuo par mhl’ﬂ 10.00 10.00

The Company has a net loss In the books of accounts 1hus, the effect of welghted average potential equity shares wauld be anti-dilulive.

Unhedged Forelgn Currency {FE} exposure
The Campany dees not have significant exposure 1o the risk of change In forelgn currecny as the Company Is not having any receivable and payable In fareign currency.

Credit Risk

Credit risk arises from the possibility that the counter parly may not be able to setile thelr obligations as agreed. To managa this, the Company pariodically assesses financlal rallability af
custamars and othar countar partias, taking Inlo aceount the financial conditlon, current ecanemle trends, and analysis af historlcal bad debts and ageing of financlal assets. individual risk
limlts are set and periodically reviewed on the basls of such Information.
The Company considars the probability of default upen Initlal recognition af asset and whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk on an ongolng basls through each reporting
period. Ta agsess whather there Is & signllieant Increase In credit risk the Company compares the risk of default occurring on asset as at the reporting date with the risk of default a5 at the

date of initial recognition. [t considers reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking Information such as:
1) Actual or expected significant adverse changes In business,

li} Actual or expactied signifeant changes In the operating results of the counlerparty,
ill} Financial or economic conditions that are expecied ta cause a signiflcant changa ta the caunterperly’s abllity to meet iis ebligations,

The Company measuras the expected cradit loss of trade recelvables and loan from individual custorners based on histarical trend, Industey practices and the business enviranment in which
the enlity operates. Loss rates are based on actual credit lass exparlence and past irends, Based on the histarical data, loss on collection of recelvable s not matedal hence ne additional

prevision is considered,
Trade Recalvables:

The ageing of trade recelvables and expected credit [oss analysis on thase trado reeolvables Is given In balow table: {Rs. in Lakhs)
Parileulsrs 0-60 days 61-180 days 181-365 days above 365 days Talal
As at 31st March, 2022 (Gross) - ¥ - .
As at 315t March, 2021 (Gross) - = 3.09 .08
Tha axpectad credit loss analysis on these trade receivables is given in below table:

{Rs. in Lukhs)
|Particulars Amount
As at 15t April, 2020 328
|Provision for doubtful debts =
Bad dobis {0.19)
As at 31st March, 2021 3,09
Provislen for doubtful debls .

{3.09)

Bad debts
|.M 5t 31s1 March, 2022

]
SRR (e
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Lapltal Alsk Managgment

a) The Company manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as going concern while maximising the return to stakeholdars through the

aptimisation of the debt and aquity balance. The capital structura of the Company cansists of net debt (borrowings as detalled In notes 17, 21 and 23 offset
by eash and bank balances) and total equity of the Coampany.

The Company determines the amount of capital required on the basis of annual as well as long term operating plans and ather strategic investment plans.
The funding requirerments are met through long-term and short-term borrowings. The company monltors the capital structure on the basis of total debt to
gquity ratio and maturity profile of the overall debt portfolio of the Company.

The capital componants of tha Company ara as glven below:

{Rs. In Lalkhs)
As at

Partlculars Asat As at

315t March,2022 31st March,2021
Tatal Equity 36,541.90 36,590.80
Shart Term Borrowlngs = 2,688.00
Long Term Borrowings -
Current Maturities of Long Term Borrowings - 7
Total Debt - 1,688.00
Cash and Bank Balances 43.74 7.94
Net Deht (43.74) 2,680.06
Debt Equity ratlo (D.00) 0.07
Liguidity Risk

Prudent liquidity risk managemant Implles malntaining sufficient cash and marketable securitles and the availabllity of funding thraugh an adequate amount
of committed credit facllities to meat obligations when due and to close aut market positions. Dua to tha dynamic nature of the underlying businesses,
Cempany treasury malntains flexibility In funding by malntaining availability under committed credit lines. Managemant monitars ralling forecasts of the

Company’s llquidity position (comprising the undrawn barrawing facilities below) and cash and cash equivalents on the basls of expected cash llows.

Rs. In Lakhs
As at 31st March, 2022
Maturitles of Financial Liabilities Upto 1yenr 1 ta B yuars % years & above
Borrowlings - - -
Trade Payables 0.28 - -
Other Financlal Liabilities {Current + Non Current] 21.15 . =
2143 - -
Rs. In Lakhs
As at 313t March, 2021
L 1
Maturlties of Financlal Liabllitles Upto 1 year 1105 yoars % years & above
Borrowings 2,688.00 - -
Trade Payables 18.15 - -
Other Financlal Liabllities {Current + Non Current) 24.70 - =
2,730.85 - -

Tul
Intarast rate rlsk Is the risk that the falr value of future cash flows of the financlal Instruments will fluctuate because of changes in markat Interest rates. In
order to optimize the Group's position with regards to Interest income and Interest expenses and to manage the interest rate risk, treasury performs a
comprehensive corporate Interast rate risk management by balancing the proportion of fixed rate and floating rate financlal Instruments In its latal
partfolio.
The company doesn't have any borrowings at floating rate Interest and therefare, there 15 no risk associated with the interest rate fluctuation,

Other price risks

The Company Is exposed to price risks arlsing fram mutual fund Investments.

Price sensitivity nalysls:
The sensltivity analysis below have been determined based an the exposure to mutual fund prica risks at the end of the reporting year.

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Invastmant Amount Impact on Profit before tax for the year
Mutual Fund Investment maasured at FVTPL (In Changa InMAY Prico Increase by 5% | Price docrease by 5%
As at 315t March, 2022 500.72 5% 25.04 (25.04)
As at 31 March 2021 2 5% - -
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k)

t)

4)

Tax Expenses

{Rs, In Laiths)

As at Asat
Arount meagniind tn profit or iy 31stMarch,2022 | 313t March,2021
Income tax
In respect of the currant year - o
In raspact of priar years - 2.81
- 2.01
Deferred tax
In raspact of the currant year 15.20 76,33
25.20 76.33
Total Ineome tax expenia recognised 25.20 73.14
Amount recopnised In other comprahensive income
Deferred tax
Remeasurement of defined benefit abligation 0.12 0.12
TotalIncome |I|£;E|'HI]'I‘! racognised In other comprehensive Income 0.12] 0.12 |
Tha income tax exg for tha year can be reconclled ta the g profit as foll {Rs. In Lakhs)
Partlculars Arat ALt
31st March, 2022 313t March,2021
Profit/ (Less) before tax (74.51) (2,120.39)
Income tax expense/ (credit) calculated @ 25.17% {18.75) {533.66)
Effact of axpenses that are not deductible In determining taxabla profit . g
Effect of expenses that are deduclible . =
Effect of change In Lax Rate on Deflerred Tax Assels - .
Effact of Prior Year Tax Adjustmant . 281
Effoct of Write-down of Deferred Tax Assels . 829
Effect of Other Adjustment B87.90 -
Daferrad Tax Not Created an Current Year Lass {43.95) 601.69
Incoma taK exg recognised In profit or loss account 25.20 79.14
Deferred tax balances {Rs. In Lakhs)
Al at Asat
Pasticury 31st March, 2022 31st March,2021
Deferred tax assets {Net) £,212.89 5,240.57
Deferred 1ax liabilities (Net) {3,899.49) {3,952.65)|
Nt Doforred tax assels 1,313.40 1,288.32

Deferred tax assets and llabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences of temporary differences belween the carrying values of assels
and liabilities and their respective 1ax bases and unutilized business loss and depraciation carry-forwards and tax cradits, Dalerred lox sssels ara
racagnizad to the oxtent that It is probabla that future takabla incomn will be avallable against which the deductible temparary differences,

unused tax losses, depreciation carry-forwards and unused tax credits could be utlli

zed,

Deferred income Lax assels have not been recognlsed on accumulated losses of Rs, 5485.9 a5 at March 2022 and Rs. 5527.04 lakh 83 3t March 31,
2071 35 it Is probable that future taxabla profit will be not avallable against which the unused tax losses can be utilized in the foresoeable future.

The detalls of expiration of unused tax lossed nra as follows:

(Rs. In Lakhs)
Year As at As at
315t March, 2022|313t March,2021
ﬁﬂlﬂ 683.31 687.97
|5 t years 4,7906.59 4,835.07
[Tatal 5,485.90 5,527.04
Kpan: T n 15t March, 202 [Rs.In Lakhs)
Recognised In | Recognlsed In other
Partlculars Opening balance| statement of comprehensliva Closing balance
prafitand lass Income
Defarred tax (llabliitles)/assots In relation to:
Praperty, Plant and Equlpments {3,952.65) §3.16 3 {3,859.49)
Cotry forward Losses 523841 (28.64) - 5.209.77
2.56 0,68 0,12} 313
[Total 1,298,323 25,19
Movement of tax expense during the year ended 31st March, 2021 {Rs. In Lakhs)

Racognised in

Recognisad In other

Partlculars Opening balance| statement of comprehensiva Closing balanca
profit and loss Income

Deferred {ax {llabilites)/assets In relalion to:

Property, Plant and Equipments {3,408.87) (543.78) - (3,952.65)

Carry lorward Lossas 4,770.49 a67.92 - 5,238.41

Provision for Employee Benefits 315 (0.47) (0.12) 256

[Total 1.364,77 | [76,33) (0,12} 1,208.33 |
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ories of Flasnclsl
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Pariiculss VT WOt Amariised Coil TPL [~ vmac Amoriirad Cort
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Investments . - ors . - a1
Invesuments In Mutual Funds 0072 . 300.72 . - =
Trada Recalvabler i : . . . H
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4pt #1 detniled In the folswing lable, the Company conlders thal the earrying amaunta of financls! Initruments recognised In the Mnsncial patementy
appraalmata thelr T3 valoss.
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The following table presents falr valua of 2yiars and Uakilnies meatused at falr walue on recutring basls av of 3311 Mirch 2022
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Exceplions] tem of Rr, HIL [F.Y, Ry, B35.6) Labh) reprasant addianal 3mount paid 18 AsRvoling chiss equity sharcholdens of = sulbiidiary company an

accaunt al af dings and ather di The winding up praceedings were Nied against the eompany with regard to Lhe
! on tha fully sought by the nen-veling <las Fqulty Sharehald

Covid-13 Hole

Dug 1 LOVID-12 prademie and the lackdian d by the G of Indls, tha of the Camasny ware Twspended ince

Wi thlid yreeh of Madih, 2010 (0 Olaber, 2020. Duilng the cu
anngunided by the slale governmenls, the Company could aperile pirtiafly [iom Havember 2021 1l Fabruary 2027 and ralurning 1o normaley wilh 108%
capaelty (wilheut any restviction) liom March 2022. The Hatel builneid hive wilnelied & good grawih in ravenus In the third snd faunh quanar of the
WheRT YT,

finanial yrar alio, coniequent 1u tha lack dawn dus ta th 1econd wave ol pandemic

Contidering the overall gradual ictutning ey, the poillive peif fat tha quiriar and th ' af tha potibls Impsct of
this pandemic o8 The buiiness operatfons and the Tadniial pesition of the Compiny and bxid on It Inkfsl siavimant of the current Indicatary of the
Tuluse econnmic condtlan, the Company expeels TNBI Lt COVID:1 pinéemie would not have any materisl sdveris Impaci an tha racovarabls vilues of liv
financlal and nen-Naanclal §15¢1a ind on the nel werth of the Company.

Furihar, the Company I dabsl free snd wauld hive adequals liquisity svailabls (o hanour is Uskiities and abligalont, & $nd whea dus, Tha management
will coniinus 1o monlior sny matyrial changes 1a H COVIO-19 Impact arsmsement, reruhiing fam the fulure ecenomic condlions and fulure uneerlalary, if
any.

Geher Satutosy Infarmatlen

U] Tha Campany dogy nat hava any Benami greparry, whare any praceeding has been iahlated ar pending agalnst the Company for helding any Benami
pioBETY.

1) Thw Sompany doan nol h ¥ slruck oif.

(i4) The Comp ey oes ol have sy thaigns af ith i3 yol I bo regr NG bayand e sbilulery pariad,

{ivIThe Gompany hat el iraded or invealed in Grypla curmenty o Virlual Cumsncy during the Ninanchal year,

{v]tha Campany dors noi have any puch irantaction which I nat secordad In the boaks of accaunts That has been surrendered ar disclnied i3 Intome
during 1ha year In the tax asnmania under the Incoma Tas Ach, 1961 fruch 3, search o1 1urviy or 30y 9that ralévant piavliloni ef the income Tas Act,
1961

{vi)Hin fundx havs been adesnced arioaned or Invevied by ihe Campany i o In any personds] of enttylles). Including foreign entitles (‘the intermediarics],
with the undanlanding whather recorded in writing ar atherwits, that the Intarmedisry vhill, swhathar, direatly of Indizeethy lead af invnl Iy other peront
of entities lideniNed ia any manaer whatsaever by of on behalf of Lhe Campany (the Ulimsie Banaficiarier'] or provide any gusraniss, wcurity or tha lika
on behall the Ulimate Renslalailie,

{uiljiio unds have been recerved by the Company from any personli) of eniitylina), Including laraign antities (tha Funding Pariin’], with tho undaratanding,
whethar recorded In wiiling a7 ethervlse, 1hai the Company shall whether directly of indleectly, lend or invest in othar genens or antilies dsalilied In any
manner whatcaevsr liy of 84 behall ol the Funding Pasty ('Uimate Denelidlaries’) of pravide any guitantes, sucurily o the lks an behsl of tha Ulimate
neneNcharies.

Furnt aicurilag alfter Bilante Sheet daid

On 13th April, 3022 The Daard ol Direciar of the Company has approved the Schoma of Amalgamarian ["Scheme”) Whith wamptise al smilgimation of the
Campany snd Diman Enteriainment Privals Limited with the Dalts Corp Uimiled, & Halding Company, The Appointad da1a 15 167 Apiil 2023, The Stheme
wwbject 1o approval af reguiatory auhaditios and will ba given oitfect (o 1a The financlal ytatement on receipt of suth approvals.
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39 Falr Value Disclosures

a) catagorles of Financlal instrumants: [Rs. in Lakhs)
As at 315t March, 2022 As at 31st March, 2021
Particular FVTPL FvTOC! Amortised Cost FUTPL FVTOCI Amortised Cost
Financial Assets
Investments - 0.25 = = 0,25
Investments In Mutual Funds 500.72 500.72 . = -
Trade Receivables - 2 = :
Cash & Cash Equivalents 43.74 - 7.84
Bank Balancas Other Than Cash - # -
and Cash Equivalents B
Loans - Current - 200.00 - 200.00
Other Finonefals Assets
- Current - - 402,58 - 760.62
= Non - Current - 75.58 - - 70.62
500,72 - 1,222.87 = 1,039.43
Financial Hobilitles
Barrowings - - 3 2,688.00
Trade Payables r # 0.28 = 18.15
Other Financial Liahllities
= Current - 21.15 - 24.70
- Nan - Current - -
- - 21,43 - - 2,730.85

bLEalr Valus Higrarchy and Mathod of Valuation

Except as detalled In the following table, the Company considers that the carrylng amounts of financial Instruments recognised In the financial statemants

appraximate their falr values.

Leval 1: Quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets and liabilities,
Level 2: Input ather than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the assets or llability, either directly (l.e. as pricas) or indirectly

[i.e.derived from prices)

Level 3! Inputs for the assets or llabllities that are not based on observable market data (unobsarvable inputs)
The fallowing table presents fair value of assets and llabllities measured at falr value on recurring basis as of 315t March,2022

(Rs. In Lakhs)
As at 31st March, 2022

PiRARclN Aty Carrying Valus Lavel 1 Level 2 Level 3
Measured at FVTOCI 0.25 7 = 0,25
Measurad at FVTPL 500.72 500.72 = -
Financlal Assats As st Al Myrch, 2021

Carrylng Value | Level 1 Lavel 2 Laval 3
Measurad at FVTOCI 0.25 | - = 0.25

Payment to Audltors

Othar Expenditura in Nate 27 includes Auditar's Remuneration In respect of

(Rs, In Lakhz)

Particular AR M

31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
Audit Fees 3,50 3150
Relmbursement of Out of Pocket - %
Expensos
Total 3.50 3.50

Exteptianal ltam Note

Excaptional ltem of Rs, NIL {P.Y. A5, 895,63 Lakh) represent additional amount pald to non-veting class equity sharcholders of a subsidiary company an
account of settlement of winding up proceedings and other related disputes. The winding up proceedings were flled against the company with regard to the
additional Intarest on the fully convertible debentures, sought by the non-voting class Equity Sharcholders.
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a4

Covid-19 Note
Due to COVID-19 pandemic and the consequent lackdown announced by the Government of India, the aperations of the Company were suspended since

the third week of March, 2020 to October, 2020, During the current financlal year also, consequent ta the lack down due to the second wave of pandemic
annaunced by the state govarnmants, the Company could eperate partially from Novemnber 2021 till February 2022 and returning to narmalcy with 100%
capacity {without any restriction} from March 2022. The Hatel business have witnessed a good growth In revenue In the third and fourth quarter of the
current year.

Consldering the overall gradual returning to normaley, the positive performance for the quarter and the management's assessment of the possible Impact
of this pandemle on the business operatians and tha financlal pesition of the Company and based on Its Initial assessment of the current indlcatars of the
future economic canditions, the Company expacts that the COVID-19 pandemie wauld not have any materlal advorse impact on the recoverable values of its
financlal and nen-financlal assets and on the nat worth of the Company.

Further, the Company Is debt free and would have adeguate liguidity avallable ta honour Its llabilities and obligations, as and when due, The management
will cantintie to manltor any material changes ta Its COVID-19 Impact assessment, resulting fram the future econamic canditions and future uncertainty, If
any.

Other Statutory Information

(1) The Campany does nat have any Banam| proparty, where any praceeding has been Initlated or pending agalnst the Company for halding any Benami
property.

(i) Tha Company does not have any transaciions with companles struck off.

(llfy The Company doas nat have any charges of saliafaction which 18 yat o ba reglstered with ROC beyond the statulory parlod,

(Iv)Tha Gompany has nol traded or nvasted In Gryplo currancy or Virual Currency during tha financlal year.

(v)The Company does not have any such transactlon which is not recorded In the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as Income
during the year In the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survay or any other relevant provislons of the Income Tax Act,
1961

[wi)No funds have bean advanced or laaned or Invested by the Company ta of In any persons) or antity(les), Including foreign entities (‘the intermediarles’),
with the understanding, whather recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or Indirectly lend or Invest In othar persons
or entities Identifled In any manner whatsaever by or on behalf of the Company (‘the Ultimate Beneficiarles’) or provide any guarantes, security or the like
on bahalf the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(vilMo funds have been recaived by the Company from any person(s) or entity(les), Including foreign entities (‘the Funding Parties’), with the
understanding, whether recarded in writing or atherwise, that the Company shall, whether directly or indirectly, land or Invast In other persans or entitles
Identified In any manner whatsaever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (‘Ultimate Beneficiarles’) or provide any guarantee, security or the llke on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficlaries.

Evant occurring after Balance Sheet date

On 11th April, 2022 The Board of Director of the Company has approvad the Scheme of Amalgamatlon {"Scheme"} Which comprise of amalgamation of the
Campany and Daman Entertainment Private Limited with the Delta Corp Limited, a Holding Company. The Appointed date Is 1st Aprll 2022, The Scheme is

subjeet to approval of regulatory autharities and will be given effect to in the financlal statement an receipt of such approvals.

0

o tM Al
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45  Trade Payable Agelng Schedule
The ageing Schedule for Trade payables as at 31 March,2022 (Rs. In Lakhs}
fol ods fram d
Al Mo Farieun Mot e l“::::" L 1to 2 years |2 to 3 years|Mare than 3 Year Total
) |msmE - : = z s
{ii) Othears 0.28 5 = s s 0.28
(i)  |Disputed Dues-MSME - - - = %
{iv]  |Disputed Dues-Dthers - - - - -
Total 0.28 - - - 0.28

The agelng Schedule for Trade payables as at 31 March,2021

{Rs. in Lakhs)

[l aymen
Sl Ny el Rk Les;:t.:n 111 to 2 years |2 to 3 yaars|More than 3 vear Total
(i) |MsmE -
(i) |Others 0.28 0.34 - 9.51 B.02 18.15
(I |Dlsputed Dues-MSME "
(lv}  |Disputed Dues-Others £
Total 0.28 0.34 - 8,51 8.02 18.15
46 CWIP Ageing Schedula
The ageing Schedule for CWIP is as below [Rs, In Lakhs)
Amount In CWIP for a perlod of
5L No, Praject in Progress Less than 1 12years | 2:3years Mora than Tatal
year 3 years
(i) |Asat31 March,2022 - - 3041 . 30.41
() |As at 31 March,2021 - 30.41 - 10,41
{Ii}  |As at 31 March,2020 30.41 - - = 30.41
(iv)  |Project temporarlly suspended - = - i

Aty oot
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47 Ratios
Following are the ratios computed for the year endad 315t March 2022

For the Year | Forthe Year
Ratlos Unit Basls (Restated Numbers) Ended 31st Ended 31st Varlanca
March, 2022 | March, 2021

{a) Current Ratlo Times Current Assits 25.30 0.94 2584.82%
Currant Liabilities

(b} Debt - Equity Ratio Times Tatal Debt - 0.07 -100.00%
Total Shareholder's Equity

(c ) Dabt Servica Coverage Ratlo Times EBIT (0.03) - 100.00%
Debt Services

{d ) Return on Equity Ratio Parcentage Net Prefit After Tax «0.13% -6.01% -97.76%
Average of Last two years Nelwarth

(e } Inventory Turnover Ratio Times Cost of Goods Sold NA NA 0.00%
Average Inventory

(') Trade Receivable Turnover Ratlo Times Cradit Sale NA NA 0.00%
Average Trade Receivables

(i ) Trade Payables Turnover Ratio Times Credit Purchase 9.92 3.97 145.89%
Average Trade Payables

{h ] Net Capital Turnover Ratio Times Raevenue from Operatlons 1.22 (3.21) ~138.06%
(Current Assots - Curront Liabilitles)

{1} Net Profit Ratia Percentage Net Profit After Tax -3.50% «434.60% -89.19%
Revenue from Operatlons

{1 ) Return an Capital Employed Percantage Earnings before Interest and Tax 0.21%) «6,00% -96,48%
{Total Equity - DTA - Intangiblo Assets)

(K ) Return on Investment Percentage EBIT +0,20% -5.31% -36.31%
Average Total Assets

Rensons for more than 25% variance

1. Current ratlo: During the currant year Company has repald borrowlngs amounting to Rs, 2,688 lakhs, Ivading to decrease in current liabilities and
as a consequence improvement in current ratio.

2. Debt-cquity ratio: During the current year, Company has repaid borrowings amounting to Rs. 2,688 lakhs, as a consequence, total debt
outstanding as on 31 March 2022 |5 Nil. Which rasulted In 100% Varlance

3, Debt Service Coveraga Ratlo: In Current year company has repaid previous year barrowing of Rs. 2,688, whereas in previous year company has
barrow Rs. 2,688, Thus there js a varisnce of 100%. 4

4, Return an equity: Curront year loss Is reduced by R5.2,150.22 Lakh which resulted -0.13%, In previous year there is an exceptional item of Rs.
BO5.63 lakh, Whereas in current year there is no such expense

5. Trade Payable Turnover Ratio : In cUrrent year average trade payable is reduced by Rs. 12.11 lakh which and also the credit purchase Is Increased
by Rs. 6.75 lakh, which resulted In Increase of trade payable ration by 149%

6. Nat Capital Turnover Ratio : In current year revenue from opeartion and working capltal Increased by Rs. 903 lakh and 1,310.74 lakh
respectively, which resulted in variance of -138.06%

7. Net Praflt Ratlo ¢ In current year revenue from opeartion Inereased by Rs. 903 lakh and loss reduced by Rs. 2,150.21 lakh, which resulted In
variance of -99.19%

8. Return on Capltal Employed : In current yaar loss before Interast and tax reduced by Rs. 2,044.75 lakh and also the capital employed is reduced
by Rs. 73.98 lakh, which resulted In variance of -96.48%

9. Return on investment i In current year loss reduced by Rs. 2,044.75 lakh and also tha average total assets are reduced by Rs, 1,931.54 lakh,
which resulted In varlance of -96,31%
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48 Ravanun from contracls with cuslomers

Disaggregnte rovenue Infarmation

Sal oul balow Is the disaggragation of the Group's revenus from coniracls wilh euslomars and recancilialian te profil and loss accaunt:

{Rs. in Lokhs)
i Typa of services As at 31at March, 2022 As al 31st March, 2021
|
Haospilalils 1,408.11 506.10
Total rwvﬁin 140941 06,1
b) Geographical market {Rs. In Lakha)
Parilculara Ag at 315t March, 2022 As at 3st Mareh, 2021
India 1,408,114 508,10
Oulsido India - -
Tolal revenuo from canlract wilh cusiomar 1,408.11 508.10
¢} _Timing of Rovanus racognition {Rs. In Lakha
Pariiculars AG al 39st Mareh, 2022 As at 31st March, 2021
Revenua Recognlsed al a paeinl in ime - -
Revenua Recognisad over lime 140811 508.10
Total revenuo from contract with customer 1,409.11 508.10
d} _Contract balances {Rs. 5!
Parilculars As sl 318l March, 2022 As gl 31st March, 2021
Trado Racalvable . -

o) Trada receivabla and unbillad revenues are presoniad nol of impairment n tho Balance Sheet. In 2022, Provislon for expecled cradil os3 recegniaed on Curronl Irada

roccivable is Re. MIL { P.Y. Rs, 3,00 Lakhs )

For Walker Chandlok & Co LLP
Charlered Actountanls
Firm Regisiralion No. G0107GN/NS00013
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